
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY
FINAL OFFICIAL MINUTES

Public Health Trust Nominating Council

Board of County Commissioners
Stephen P. Clark Government Center

Conference Room 29 A
111 NW 1st Street

Miami, Florida    33128

Meeting Date:

January 8, 2004
4:00 P.M. Conference Room 29 A

Prepared by:
Harvey Ruvin, Clerk

Board of County Commissioners

Kay Madry Sullivan, Director
Clerk of the Board Division

Reporter:
Alicia Stephenson, Commission Reporter

(305) 375-1475



Page 1 Public Health Trust January 8, 2004
Nominating Council

MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC HEALTH TRUST NOMINATING COUNCIL
MEETING OF JANUARY 8, 2004

The Public Health Trust Nominating Council (the Council) convened at 4:12 p.m. in
Conference Room 29-A of the Stephen P. Clark Government Center, 111 N.W. 1st Street. 
There being present Council Members Andres Murai, Jr., Commissioner Katy Sorenson, 
Dade Delegation Representative Rene Garcia, Chairperson Dorrin Rolle, and
Commissioner Senator Javier Souto; Assistant County Attorney Eugene Shy, Assistant
County Manager Barbara Jordan, Assistant to the County Manager Andre Ragin, Senior 
Executive Secretary Jacqueline Mills; and Deputy Clerk Alicia Stephenson.

I. Welcome and Introduction

Chairperson Rolle called the meeting to order at 4:12 p.m. He welcomed each of the
Council members and staff. He noted the purpose of today’s meeting was to select
nominees to be interviewed to serve on the Public Health Trust (PHT).

II. Approval of Minutes

It was moved by Mr. Murai that the Council’s meeting minutes for November 13, 2003
be approved.  This motion was seconded by Commissioner Souto, and upon being put to 
a vote passed by a vote of 5-0.

III. Agenda

It was moved by Chairperson Rolle that today’s agenda be considered as presented. This 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Souto, and upon being put to a vote, passed by a 
vote of 5-0.

IV. Process of Short Listing

Assistant County Manager Barbara Jordan explained that all Council members should
have received applications for seats on the PHT and a summary sheet. Council members
should also have received a short listing form for the nominees to be selected by each
Council member, Ms. Jordan explained. She suggested each Council member read the
names of their nominees into the record, and as they were read, staff would tally the
votes.

Commissioner Sorenson requested and received clarification on which incumbents were 
eligible for reappointment from Assistant County Attorney Eugene Shy, who noted the
following individuals were eligible:

Copeland III, John
de la Fe, Ernesto 
Hanfield, Larry R. Esq.
Koznitsky, Michael 
Nuell, Laurie 



Page 2 Public Health Trust January 8, 2004
Nominating Council

Following Mr. Shy’s response, Commissioner Sorenson recommended that the five
incumbents be interviewed as a courtesy.

Assistant County Manager Jordan pointed out that the Council could recommend the
reappointment of the five incumbents or Commissioner Sorenson could include the
incumbents on her list of nominees.

Assistant County Manager Jordan explained, in response to Chairperson Rolle’s request
for further clarification regarding the voting process, that staff would tally the votes as
each Council member’s nominees were read into the record.  She noted after the votes
were tallied, staff would narrow the list by announcing the nominees who received the
most votes.

It was moved by Representative Garcia that the nominees for the PHT be read into the
record as follows.  This motion was seconded by Mr. Murai, and upon being put to a
vote, passed by a vote of 5-0:

Commissioner Sorenson
Copeland III, John
de la Fe, Ernesto
Hanfield, Larry R. Esq.
Koznitsky, Michael
Nuell, Laurie
Moise, Ary
Austin Esq., Michelle
Almaguer, Ruben
Estevez, Kathryn K. 
Greenblatt, Sandra P. 
Johnson, Sharon R. 
Lindemann, George
Hillman, Edward
Rebull, Thomas J. 
Wollschlaeger, Bernd

Andres Murai, Jr.
Copeland III, John 
de la Fe, Ernesto 
Hanfield, Larry R. Esq.
Koznitsky, Michael 
Nuell, Laurie
Lopez-Castro, Amadeo
Sanchez, Roberto
Sicre, Manuel
Greenblatt, Sandra P.
Hertz, Arthur
Laniado, Mauricio E.



Page 3 Public Health Trust January 8, 2004
Nominating Council

Yaeger, Ivan
Pineiro, Guillermo
Sanchez-Medina, Roland
Rebull, Thomas J.

Commissioner Senator Javier J. Souto
Copeland III, John
de la Fe, Ernesto 
Hanfield, Larry R. Esq.
Koznitsky, Michael 
Nuell, Laurie
Russin, David J.
Almaguer, Ruben
Hertz, Arthur
Sanchez-Medina, Roland
Alvarez, Jorge
Hillman, Edward
Rebull, Thomas J. 
Estevez, Kathryn K.
Greenblatt, Sandra P.
Austin Esq., Michelle

Chairperson Rolle
Copeland III, John
de la Fe, Ernesto
Greenblatt, Sandra P.
Hanfield, Larry
Johnson, Sharon R.
Laniado, Mauricio E.
Lindemann, George
Nuell, Laurie
Penn, Carla R.
Russin, David J.
Sanchez, Roberto
Sanchez-Medina, Roland
Yaeger, Ivan
Quintero, Norma
Austin, Michelle

Dade Delegation Representative Rene Garcia
Copeland III, John
de la Fe, Ernesto 
Hanfield, Larry R. Esq.
Koznitsky, Michael
Nuell, Laurie
Alvarez, George



Page 4 Public Health Trust January 8, 2004
Nominating Council

Laniado, Mauricio E.
Lopez-Castro, Amadeo 
Rebull, Thomas J.
Velez, Paul-Carl
Zapata, Juan

During this process, Mr. Murai questioned whether some of his nominees could be
excluded from the list.  Following comments by Assistant County Attorney Shy,
Chairperson Rolle stated that Mr. Murai would be permitted to omit some of his
nominees.

Mr. Murai asked that the following names be deleted from his list of nominees:

Pineiro, Guillermo
Sanchez-Medina, Roland

Representative Garcia inquired as to whether background checks were conducted on all
of the nominees. Assistant County Manager Jordan responded, noting the interview
process would be held after the nominees were selected by the Council.  She noted
although background checks had not been conducted, members of the Council would be 
able to question the nominees extensively during the interview process.

Chairperson Rolle announced the voting results, noting the following 10 nominees
received three or more votes.

Copeland III, John 
de la Fe, Ernesto
Hanfield, Larry R. Esq.
Nuell, Laurie 
Greenblatt, Sandra P. 
Koznitsky, Michael 
Rebull, Thomas J. 
Austin Esq., Michelle
Laniado, Mauricio E.
Lopez-Castro, Amadeo

It was moved by Commissioner Sorenson that the 10 individuals noted above be
interviewed on January 29 through January 30, 2004 for appointment to the PHT.  This 
motion was seconded by, Mr. Murai and upon being put to a vote, passed by a vote of 5-
0.

Assistant County Attorney Shy noted he had a conversation with Representative Zapata
who indicated that he expected to run for State office. He said that during this
conversation, he explained to Representative Zapata that a prohibition existed in the
Florida Statutes that prohibited State office holders from serving on the PHT.  Mr. Shy



Page 5 Public Health Trust January 8, 2004
Nominating Council

noted he expected that Representative Zapata would submit a written request to the
County Manager’s Office asking that his name be withdrawn from the slate of nominees.

Assistant County Attorney Shy explained that pursuant to the Florida State Constitution, 
State office holders were prohibited from holding two offices, which would disqualify
Representative Zapata as a nominee for the PHT.

Concerning Representative Garcia’s request for clarification regarding this prohibition,
Assistant County Attorney Shy explained that this legislation was based on the structure
of each individual board.

Commissioner Sorenson requested that the Council be provided with an ethnic and
gender breakdown of the membership of the current PHT.  Assistant County Attorney
Shy provided the information prior to adjournment of the meeting.

V. Interview Dates

There being no objection noted, Chairperson Rolle announced that the interview process 
to select nominees would be held on January 29 and January 30, 2004.

VI. Interview Questions

Assistant County Manager Barbara Jordan provided brief comments regarding the
interview process.  She asked that the questions not be reflected as a part of the official
record.  She noted one day should be sufficient to complete the interview process and that
a total of 20 minutes be permitted for each interview.  The ten individuals previously
mentioned would be notified of the interview dates as soon as possible, noted Ms. Jordan.

Concerning question(s) regarding scheduling, Ms. Jordan noted all interviewees would be 
scheduled for interviews on the same day, the afternoon of January 29, 2004.  She
pointed out that the process would be continued to January 30th, only if a major conflict 
arose with one of the applicants. 

The Council agreed to add one additional question proposed by Mr. Murai and one
additional question proposed by Commissioner Sorenson to the list of questions to be
asked during the interview process.

Chairperson Rolle asked that the interview process be completed on January 30, 2004, as 
noted by Ms. Jordan.

VII. Other

The following discussion occurred later during the day’s meeting: 



Page 6 Public Health Trust January 8, 2004
Nominating Council

Representative Garcia asked that a Conflict of Interest statement disqualifying
Representative Zapata from serving on the PHT be prepared by Assistant County
Attorney Shy and provided to him.
Addressing Representative Garcia’s concern regarding the existing state legislation that 
prohibited Representative Zapata from serving as a member of the PHT and how that
legislation compared to the legislation governing the Children’s Trust, Assistant County
Manager Jordan pointed out that language was specifically incorporated in that
legislation that permitted State office holders to serve on the Children’s Trust.

Representative Garcia inquired whether similar language could be incorporated into the
bylaws of the PHT.

Commissioner Sorenson pointed out that a Conflict of Interest would exist if a member of 
the PHT lobbied or advocated an issue before the Florida Legislature on behalf of the
PHT. Assistant County Attorney Shy concurred with Commissioner Sorenson.

Mr. Andre Ragin advised that the proposal providing for the retroactive approval of the 
Public Health Trust Nominating Council process was on the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) January 20, 2004 meeting agenda, and the slate of nominees
would probably be placed on the BCC’s agenda for final approval in February 2004.

There being no further discussion, the PHTNC meeting was adjourned at 5:03 p.m.

____________________________________
Honorable Dorrin Rolle, Chairperson
Public Health Trust Nominating Council


